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The Board of Trustees
Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center

dba LifePath Systems

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath
Systems ("LifePath"). as of and for the year ended August 31,2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements. which collectively comprise LifePath's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the respective
financial position ofthe governmental activities. each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems, as of August 31. 2022, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable. cash flows thereof lor the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Got'ernment Audiling Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repo(. We are required to be

independent of LifePath Systems and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for tlte Finonciol Stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation olthe financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ol America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fhir presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate u,hether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about LifePath's ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Autlitor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial St ements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repoft that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as lraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material ifthere is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate. they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and. Government Auditing
Stlndards \,,e:

. Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, lvhether due to fraud or eror,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
LifePath's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as u'ell as evaluate the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in ourjudgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about LifePath's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required S upple me ntary I nfo r malion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages l0 through 18 and 45 through 46 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a paft of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries oi management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information lor consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Inform ion

The schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Llnifurm Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, dnd Audit Requirements.for Federal Awards, andTexas Grant Management Standards (TxGMS),
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financia[ statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule ofexpenditures offederal and state awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic hnancial statements and our
auditor's reporl thereon. Our bpinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and
we do not express an opinion or any form ofassurance thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed,
we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement ofthe other information exists, we are required to describe
it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Autliting Slandards

In accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 26,2023, ort
our consideration of LifePath's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of LifePath's intemal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance u,ith
Government Auditing Standards in considering LifePath's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

Scoa, S&4r/irn4, /rr4i/e, drd ear44far,rl, 

"0
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba
LifePath Systems (the Center) financial performance provides an overview' of the Center's
financial activities for the fiscal year ended August 3l , 2022. We encourage readers to consider
the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying
notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of LifePath Systems exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $74,459,860 (net position). Of this amount, $55,941,072 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the Center's ongoing obligations.

a

a

a

The Center's total net position (government-wide) increased by $9,530,554

As of the close of the cunent fiscal year, the Center's general fund reporled ending fund
balance ol $50,685,356, an increase of$9,602,780 in comparison with the prior year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to LifePath System's basic
financial statements. The Center's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1)

government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements, The Statement of Net Position presents information
on all of the Center's assets and liabilities. Increases or decreases in net position serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of LilePath Systems is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities includes all the revenue and expenses generated by the Center's
operations during the year. The accrual basis of accounting is used, which is similar to the

accounting method used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues

and expenses are reported regardless ofwhen cash is received or paid.
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o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was

$35,220,388 or approximately 78 percent oftotal general fund expenditures.



In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. the Center is divided into two
types of activities:

Governmental activities The Center's basic services are reported in this section. including
the Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Division, Early Childhood Intervention,
Behavioral Health Division and General Administration.

Businesslype oclivily The Center has no activities that would be classified in the business-
type activities category.

The govemment-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20 21 ofthis report

REPORTING THE CENTER'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Governmental funds - Govemmental funds are used to account lor essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the govemmenlwide financial statements.
However. unlike the government-wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial
statements focus on how dollars llow into and out of those funds and the balances left at
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modiJied accrual accounling that measures cash and all other financial assets

that can be readily converted to cash.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Center's general
govemment operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the Center's programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between govemmental activities (reporled in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following the fund
financial statements.

The Center adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison schedule
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This
schedule can be fbund on pages 45-46 of this report.
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The lund financial statements begin on page 22 and provide detailed information about the
Center's funds. A lund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. LifePath Systems, Iike
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All ol the funds of the Center are divided into three
categories: governmental funds. proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.



Proprietary funds - When the Center charges customers for the services it provides -
w'hether to outside customers or to other programs of the Center these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. The Center maintains one type of proprietary fund.
-fhe internal service fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the Center's various functions. The Center :uses an internal service fund to
account for acquisition of capital assets as well as for the future replacement of existing
capital assets.

Fiduciary fund Fiduciary funds are used to account lor resources held for the benefit ol
parties outside of the Center. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmentwide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
Center's o\\n programs. Funds held on behall of consurners are considered fiduciary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the govemment-u,ide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30 43 of this
repoft.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes.
this report also presents certain supplementary informatfu.riz that is required by the Texas
Health and Human Services Commission's Guidelines Jbr Annual and Compliance Audits of
Community MHMR Centers, the Uniform Guidance and Texas Grant Management Standards
(TxGMS). This supplementary information can be found beginning on pages 48 ol this
report.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's
financial position. In the case of LifePath Systems, assets exceeded liabilities by $74,459,860 at

the close of the most recent fiscal year.

A portion of the Center's net position ($18,518,788 or 25Y") reflect its investment in capital
assets; land. buildings, vehicles and furniture and equipment, less any related debt used to
acquire the assets that is still outstanding. The Center uses these assets to provide services to the

consumers it serves; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
dba LifePath Systems

Comparative
Statements of Net Position

2022 2021

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

I-ong{erm liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position:

Net investment in capitalassets

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 59.994,123

19,823,601

____J2inlu_

2,147.636

3,210,228

5,357,864

t8,518,788

55,941,072

$ 49,971,189

19,567,853

69,539,042

1.078283

3,531,453

4,609,736

19,567,853

45 361 53

s 74,459,860 $ 64.929,306

[Jnrestricted net position for the most current fiscal year of $55,941,072 or approximately 75%o

may be used to meet the Center's ongoing obligations to consumers and creditors.
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Collin County Mental He alth Mental Retardation Center
dba LifePath Systems

Comparative
Statements of Activities

2022 202t
Reverurcs

Program reventres

Charges for services

Operating gants/contributions

General reventres

Total revemres

Expenses

Behavioral Heahh

Intelle ctual & Developmental Disabilities

Early C hillhood Intervention

Interest on Long-term Debt

Total expemes

$ 1 8,43 1,643

3 5,51 5,370

1,033,767

$ 18,732,557

32,159,267

755,305

54,980,780 51,647 .129

29,787.528

6,953,164

8.639,53 5

69,999

26,790,902

6,996,31 I

1 ,7 41,424

38,342

41,566,979

Change in net position 9.530,554 10,080. l s0

Net poshion - beginning ollear 64.929,306 54,849. l s6

Net position - end ofyear $ 74,4s9,860 $ 64,929,306

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Revenues for the Center's governmental activities w-ere $54,980,780 while the total expenses
were $45,450,226. The change in net position was an increase of $9,5i0,554. LifePath's
Behavioral Health programs ended the year with an increase in net position of $7,896,279
primarily due to revenues from the 1 1 I 5 waiver programs.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The Center had no activities that would be classified in the businesstlpe activities category.

45,450,226
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CENTER'S FUNDS

Governmental funds. As the Center completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented
in the balance sheet on page 22) reported combined fund balance ol $50,729.136, which is an

increase of$9,576,945 from last year's total of$41,152,191.

The lbcus ofthe Center's General Fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Center's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general lund is the chief operating fund of the Center. At the end of the current fiscal year.

unassigned fund balance in the general fund was $35,220,388, while total fund balance reached

$50,685.356. As a measure of general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 78 percent of total
general fund expenditures.

Proprietary funds, The Center's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found
in the govemment-wide linancial statements, but in more detail.

Actual revenue is over the final budget by $4,269,673, primarily due to revenue lrom the 1115

waiver program. Actual expenditures are under the final budgeted amount by $5,683,006 due to
lower expenditures in personnel cost, contracted services and rents due to a new accounting
standard relating to leases and capitalization - Govemmental Accounting Standards Board
statement number 87 (GASB 87).

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The Center's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
August 31, 2022" was $19,823,601 (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization). The
investment in capital assets includes facilities. vehicles, furniture and equipment, and leased

buildings.

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year include

15

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Computers and related equipment for Center's program personnel
Vehicles for staff who travel to provide serwices to replace older vehicles
Building renovat ions and repairs
Leased buildings and facility right ofuse (new in FY22 due to GASB 87)



Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
dba LifePath Systems

Capital Assets (net of depreciation and amoftization)

Governmental Activities

Fv 2022 FY 2021

$ 13,223

1,412,454

20,499,824

92,921

4,417,298
1,140,451

1,728,649

(9,481,219) (8,4s9,302)

$19,823,601 $19,567.8s3

Note 4 to the financial statements provides detailed information ofthe Center's capital assets.

Long-term debt. At the end of the curent fiscal year, the Center had $604,221 outstanding on a
$1,500,000 revenue anticipation note outstanding. In FY 2018, the Center received note proceeds
which ll'ere utilized to finance lacility construction improvements and renovations. Additionally,
GASB 87 requires the recognition of a'lease liability' that amounted to $1,304.813 related to the
lease agreements for properlies rented by the Center. Interest expense was $69.998 for the fiscal
year. Additional information on the Center's long-term debt can be found in note 5 of this
report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Center's Board of Trustees and Executive Management Team will continue to face
significant challenges and opporlunities in the coming year. While LifePath Systems' Behavioral
Health services have grown dramatically over the past several years, Early Childhood
Intervention and Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities services have remained relatively
stagnant due to lack of funding increases. The rapid population growth in the Center's
catchment area, along with the increased needs post-pandemic, has increased the demand for
additional services across the center.

C onstruction in Progress

Land

Buildings

Leasehold improvenrents

Fuminre and Equipnrnt
Vehicles

Leased assets (adopted GASB 87 in FY22)
Less: accrunulated depreciation/amortization

Total Capital Assets

$ 30,800

1,412,454

20,520,949
?5 q)6

4,957,194

1,079,832
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LifePath. as the designated authority for mental health, substance abuse, and intellectual and
developmental disability (IDD) services, is responsible for addressing these increasing needs
without sulficient resources. In IDD programs, there are long waiting lists for programs only
afforded through dedicated state or federal funding. For programs supported by Medicaid and
Medicaid waivers, rates are based on unrealistic cost estimates, especially in the current
workforce shortage. Staff and Board must continue to collaborate with other entities, diversify
funding sources and work with community agencies to meet the most critical needs. The
lollowing issues will need addressing in the foreseeable future:

Full implementation ol the Directed Payment Program (DPP) and Charity Care Program
(CCP) is still in the initial stages. Maximizing these funding sources has proven to be
difficutt and has required a significant amourt of additional staff time.

a

a

Workforce shortages have proven to be a significant challenge to initiating new programs
and managing ongoing programs. Competition for employees has driven up salaries and
costs for competitive benefits. Many positions are taking significantly longer to fill and
tumover is higher in all areas.

While grants continue to help the Center expand funding, most grants are time limited
and increase pressure to either find longer term financing strategies or eliminate
programs.

IDD provider services, especially our group homes, have experienced significant
increases in expenses from salaries to cost of food and other supplies. Without adequate
increases in Medicaid reimbursement rates, long term viability of these programs is
unceftain. Many Centers have already eliminated HCS and ICF programs due to this
funding issue.

While Early Childhood Intervention received a small increase for the target enrollment
for FY23, the increase is not enough to keep up with the demand for services. We are
expecting to significantly exceed our target without associated additional funding. w-hich
will severely stretch funds and limit our ability to meet other performance targets.

The Board and Management Team will continue to monitor the financial health of all
programs on a regular basis. Elected officials will be apprised of all major developments
and trends at the Center.
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REQUEST FOR INF'ORMATION

This financial reporl is designed to provide a general overview- of LilePath Systems finances and
the Center's accountability for the funds it receives. If you have questions about this repoft or
need additional information, contact the LifePath Systems Finance Depaftment. 1515 Heritage
Drive McKinney, TX 1 5069.
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Net Position
August 31, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Due from other governments

Accounts receivable, ne1

Supplies [nventory
Advances - intergovernmental transfers
Deposits and prepaid expenses

Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, net

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits
Other accrued expenses

Unearned program revenues

Compensated absences

Lease obligations due within one year

Notes payable due within one year

Lease obligations due in more than one year
Notes payable due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$

Governmental
Activities

36,98 8,940

15,503.620

5,057 .463
q67 051

l2 1,485

1,020,339
115 

'?1
1,412,454

I ? ))1

18,397,924

79,817,724

498,765
1 ?15 sqo

612,144
863,729

238,602
589,63 0

226,345
7l 5, 183

377,816

5,357,864

18,5 I 8,788
ss,941,072

s 74,459,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

20
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Collin County Mental l{ealth Mental Retardrtion Center
DBA Lif€path Systems

Slalemenl of Aclivities
For the Year Ending August 31,2022

Expenses Program Revenues

\et (Expensc)
Rcvenue

and Changcs
in Nct l'osition

Functions/Programs l,lxpenses

Expenses After
Allocrtion of

Administration

Charges
For

Scruices

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions
Govcrnmcnt{l

Activities

Governmental activities:
lntellectual and Developmental Disabilities programs

Early Childhood Intervention program

Behavioral Health programs

Administration
Debt Service lnterest

Total governmental activities

$ 6.372.376
7.917.888

)7 )OO 1))

3,790.541
()(y)

$,15,450,226

$ 580,788 $
'721.647

2,488,106
(3.790.54r)

6.951.164
{t.639.53 5

29 .',l It1 .528

69.999

t88.301
182,206

't -896.2',79

$ 4,235.380 $ 2.906.085 $

3.710.6't'7 5,351.064

I0.425.586 2'7,2s8.221

$

(69.999)

$ $ 4s,i1s0,226 $ 18,431,6,13 $ 3s,sls,J70 $ $ 8,,196,787

General revenues:
lJnrestricted invcstmcnt earnings

Other revenues

Total generrl revenues

Chrnge in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

87.194
945.973

1,033,767

9,510,554

61,929,306

$ 74,459,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.

2t

Administration
Allocation



(lollin ('ounty Nlental Health llentsl Retardation Center
DBA l,ifepnth Systems

Balrnce Shec(

Governmental Funds
August 31,2022

(;encral

l'und

Other
Governmental

Fund
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable. net

Due from other govemments

Investments
Supplies Inventory
Advances - intergovernmental transl'ers

Deposits and p.epaid expenses

Advance to other govemmental fund
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and bencfits

Othcr accrued expenses

Unearned program reveoues

Advance lrom general lund
Advance from internal service fund

TotalLiabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resourres
tJnavailable Medicaid adrninistrative claiming rc\,cnues

'l otal Deferred Inflolrs of Rcsources

Fund Balances

Non-spendable:
Deposits and prepaid expenses

Advance to other governmental fund
Assign€d:

Facility expansion

[]nassigned
Total Fund Balances

Tolal Liabilitios. Deferretl Intlo$s ol llesources. and [rund Balances

Governmental lund balanccs :rs prcscntcd ahoyr:

An Internal Ser\ice Fund is used by managernenl to charge the costs of
certain capital assets to inrlividual f'unds. I he asscts and Iiabilitics ofthe
Internal Scrvicc Fund are included in go\'ernnrentalnctivities in the

Statement of Net I'osition.

l,ong-term liabilities lbr notes payable ($60,1.221) and compensaled abserces
($238-601) nre reported in the Statenrent ofNet Position but they are not due

and pa)able in the current period and thercibrc arc not reported
as Iiabilitics in the lirnd balance sheet.

Long-tenn receivables are not available b pa) currenl-poriod
expenditures and. therelbre. are dclorrcd in thc tincl balance shecl

\rt Position - Governmental ,\ctivities

456.708

8.260

156.708

8.260

t5 000 000

35,220.388
50,68s,3s6

t 5.000.000
35,261. t68

$ 36.936,900

967,053

5,057,463
10.691,962

121.485

t.020,339
t'15 )71

8.260

$ 52,010 $ 36.988,940

967,053
5.057.463

t0,691.962
121.485

1.020.339

33s,223

8.260

_!-_!!:ll!.!!5 $ 52,010 S 55,190,72s

498.765
L15 iqo

612.144
863.729

[i,260 3,89r,580

498,76s
r.215.590

612.144

863.729

8.260
673 092

570 009

570,009

50,729.136

8.260

673 092

3,881,J20

570 009

570.009

43,780
,t3,780

$ 55,138,685 $ 52,010 $ 55,190,725

$ 50,729,136

24.003.537

(842.822)

570 009

'[he accompanying notes are an integral part ol these financial stalements

2)

3i 7,1,d59,860

'l otal
Covernmcntal

Funds

Amounts presented lbr governmental activities in thc Statcment of
Net Position arc differcnt becausc:



Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Covernmental Funds

For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

REVEN UES:
Local and eamed sources

State programs

Federal programs

Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cunent:

lntel lectual and Developmental Disabilities
Behavioral Health

Early Childhood Intervention
Administration

Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of reYenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCINC SOURCES (USES):
None

Total othcr fiDancing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balance - beginning of 1.,ear

Fund balance - end of l,ear

C eneral
Fund

Other
Governmental

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

s 20.s42,263

20,286,977

13,843,033

64,029

$ 150.3s5 $ 20.692.618
20.286.917

13,843,033

64,029
s1,736,302 150

75.95 8

t00,232

5t,886,657

6,310,719

27 .t t7.301
7,88 1.53 I

3,',7 53,264

2l'7 .269
29.628

6,310.719

27,01t,343
7,881,53 1

1,653,03 2

2t7,269
29 628

45,t33,522 176.t 90 45,309,7t2

9,602,780 (2s,8rs) 9,576,9,15

9,602,780

,1I,082,576

(2s,83s)

69,615

9,576,9{5

ll,l52,l9t

s 50,685,356 S {3,780 S s0,729,t36

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (see previous page) S 9,576,945

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain capital assets to individual funds. The results ofthe internal
service fund excluding capital contributions are reported with
governmental activities. (3s2,209)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes. capital leases) provides

current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources

of govemmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on

net position. This is the amount of long-term debt that was repaid during
the year ($2 17,268). No nerv debt was issued.

Changes in the liability for compensated absences are reported as an increase

or decrease to expense in the statement ofactivities but are not reported in
govemmental funds if the amounts are not expected to be paid from current
financial resources.

Revenues in the statement ofactivities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the govemmental funds. This includes
the increase of $70,357 in Medicaid administrative claiming revenues.

Change in net position - governmental activities

217,268

I 8,193

70,357

s 9,530,554

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
August 31,2022

ASSETS

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service
Fund

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Advance to General Fund

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Capital Assets

Land and improvements

Construction in progress

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Furniture and equipment

Computers and equipment

Lease Right of Use

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization

Capital Assets, nel

Total Non-Current Assets

T()tal Assets

L IAB ILITIES
Cunent Liabilities

Current portion of l,ease Liabilily
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabi lities
Lease Liabilit-""

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

S

4,8 r 1,657

613,092
5,184,719

1,412,454

13.223

20.499.824

92,921

I ,1 40,45 1

l ,338,51 8

3.0 7 8,780

1.128,649

(9,481,2 r 9)

19.823.60 I

19,823,601

s 25,308,350

$ 589,630

589.630

71 5.1 8l
715,r83

1,304,813

I 8,5 I 8.78 8

5,484,7 49

s 24,003,537

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

25



Collin County Mertal Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Operating Expenses:

Maintenance, repairs & vehicle expense

Depreciation and amodization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income

lnterest expense

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions

Ch angc in net position

Nct position - beginning oI year

Net position - end of year

S t,3 3 4,93 8

1,334,938

560

t,664,0t1
I,661,511

(329,639)

23;166

(40.369)

(5,967)
(22,570)

(3s2,209)

(3s2,209)

24,355,7 46

$ 2,1,003,537

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Operating Revenues:

lnternal charges for services/uses

Other operating receipts

Total operating revenues

Governmental
Activities

lnternal Service

Fund



Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
None

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Change in amount due from-/to General Fund

Purchases of capital assets

Proceeds from disposal of capital assets

Payment ofprincipal related to capital assets

Payment of interest related to capital assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments

Interest and investment eamings

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Beginning ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating ActiYities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and Amortization expense

Changes in assets and liabilities:
None

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:

Issuance of debt for leased capital assets

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service
Fund

$ 1,3 34,93 8

(s60)

1,334,!78

2,851,920
(204,762)

8,r 89

(424,346)

(40,369)

2,190,,632

(3,s48,776)

23,766

(3,525,010)

(329,639)

1 ,664,017

$ 1,334,378

s

$ 1,441,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts for services/internal charges

Payments to suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents-End of Year



Collin Counfy Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
August 31,2022

Client
Custodial Fund

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
None

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Restricted for:

Individual consumers

Total Net Position

$ 12,866

12,866

12,866

$ 12,866

The accompanying notes are an integml part ofthese financial statements.
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Additions
Cash collections on behalf of consumers

Total Additions

Deductions
Payments ofbehalf of consumers

Total Deductions

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

s 117,917

Client
Custodial Fund

117,911

136,887

t 36,887

(18,970)

31,836

$ 12,866

The accompanying notes are an inte$al part ofthese financial statements.
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund

For the Year Ended August 31, 2022



Collin Counfy Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
dba LifePath Systems

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
August 31, 2022

t. SIJMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) Introduction

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and

practices of Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems

(LifePath) are discussed in subsequent sections of this note. The remaining notes are organized

to provide explanations. including required disclosures, of LifePath's financial activities for the

fiscal year ended August 3l . 2022.

(b) Financial Reporting Entity - Basis of Presentation

LifePath is a public entity established under the Texas Mental Health Mental Retardation Act of
1965 and organized under Chapter 534. Title 7 ofthe Texas Health and Safety Code. This act

provided for the creation of local boards of trustees. LifePath's current board of trustees was

appointed by the Commissioner's Court of Collin County, Texas, to develop and implement

community-based mental health services. intellectual and developmental disability services. and

early childhood services. LifePath is govemed by an independent board. has the authority to

make decisions, appoint administrators and managers. significantly influence operations. and has

the primary accountability for fiscal matters. LifePath is not included in any other governmental

"reporting entity" as defined in Section 2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting and

Financ ial Reporting Standards.

The criteria used by LifePath for including activities in preparing its financial statements is in
conformity with Government Accounting Standards Board Statements l4 and 39 as amended by

GASB Statement 6l "The Financial Reporting Entity: OmnibtLs". Based on these criteria
LilePath has the lollor,ring component unit:

LifePath Systems Foundation (Foundation) is a charitable organization established to provide

support fbr the programs and services of LifePath Systems in order to serve the community in the

areas ofearly childhood intervention, behavioral health, intellectual and developmental disabilities,

and substance abuse needs. The Foundation is a non-profit corporation established under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Act and Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. Financial

information of the Foundation may be obtained at the office of l5 l5 Heritage Drive, McKinney,
Texas 75069. The Foundation is presented as a blended component unit due to the Foundation

being fiscally dependent on LifePath and the Foundation exclusively benefiting LifePath.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(c) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement ofnet position and the statement
of activities. These statements report financial information for LifePath as a whole excluding
fiduciary activities. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish
governmental activities, generally supported by charges for services and operating grants, from
business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to extemal
customers. LifePath does not have any business-type activities.

The statement of activities reporls the expenses of a given function off'set by program revenues
directly connected *,ith the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities
and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses
and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include:
(l) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of LifePath's services; (2)
operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted
investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition,
construction, or rehabilitation ofcapital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed
restrictions to these program uses. Contributions from local govemments and other revenue
sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The
major individual governmental fund (Ceneral Fund) is reported as a separate column in the fund
financial statements.

(d) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of LifePath are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). LifePath applies all relevant Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The government-wide statements, as well as the proprietary fund financial statements, are

reported using the economic resource.s measurement focas and the accrual ba.sis ofaccounting-
As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide
flnancial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Charges for services are
recognized in the year for which they are provided while grants are recognized as revenue as

soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor have been met.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(d) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation -
continued

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from runoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of LifePath's lnternal Service Fund are internal charges to the General Fund for
management of capital assets and the principal operating expenses are the costs of maintaining
those assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cunent .finuncial resource,s
meusurement foctts andthe modiJied accrual basis ofoccounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. LifePath considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within I20 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures generally are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt service expenditures, and
long-term compensated absences, which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenues susceptible to accrual include billings on reimbursable type grants and awards
where revenues are recognized when sen,ices are rendered or when reimbursable expenditures
are incurred. Client fees are recorded at the net realizable amounts. Uneamed program revenues
arise *'hen resources are received before there is a legal claim to them, such as *,hen grant monies
are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when there
is a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned program revenue is removed from the
balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

When both restricted and unrestricted assets are available for use, it is LifePath's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

(e) Allocation of Indirect Expenses

LifePath allocates indirect expenses primarily comprised of administrative services to operating
f'unctions and programs benefitting from those services. Administrative services include overall
management, centralized budgetary formulation and oversight, accounting, financial reporting,
payroll, procurement contracting and oversight, investing and cash management, personnel
services, and other central administrative services. Allocations are charged to programs based
on use ofcentral services determined by various allocation methodologies.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(f) Fund Types and Major Funds

LifePath repofts the following major governmental fund:

Governmental Fund

General Fund - repofts as the primary operating fund of LifePath. This fund is used to account
for all financial resources ofthe entity, except for those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Other Funds

Other Governmental Fund

Speciol Revenue Fund - reports activity of the LifePath Systems Foundation and accounts for
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for that specific purpose.

Proprietary Fund

Fiduciary Fund

C ustodial Fund - A ftcll.sc iary fund type, includes assets held for clients ofthe Center. The fund
is purely custodial and reports the changes in assets held on behalf of clients.

(g) Budget and Budgetary Accounting

LifePath's annual budget for the General Fund is prepared based on estimated expenditures
provided on a unit basis summarized by program category. The budget is submitted to the Chief
Executive Officer and the Board of Trustees. The budget must have the Board of Trustees'
approval and that of the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) for services
related to intellectual and developmental disabilities services, behavioral health services, and
early childhood services. Thefinal budget is approved byHHSC, generally before the beginning
of the new fiscal year.

JJ

Internol Service Fund - reports the activities ofmanagement to charge the costs ofcapital assets
such as buildings and vehicles to the General Fund.

The budget for the General Fund is prepared using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting, which is consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles for the governmental fund.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(h) Cash and Investments

Buildings and related improvements
Computer equipment
Vehicles
Fumiture and fixtures

34

Outstanding cash and cash equivalents consist principally of interest bearing bank accounts with
original maturities ofthree months or less from the date ofacquisition.

lnvestments consist of investments in Texas Local Covemment Pool ("TexPool"). Authorized
investments of TexPool include obligations ofthe United States of America or its agents, direct
obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, certificates of deposit, and repurchase
agreements. Interest revenue on investments is recorded in the applicable operating t'und.
lnvestments are stated at fair value within the fair hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. For investments in local government investment pools, the reported value
ofthe pool is the same as the fair value ofthe pool shares.

Unrestricted and restricted cash and investments purchased by LifePath within three months of
maturity are considered to be cash equivalents for purposes ofthe statement ofcash flows.

(i) Inventories and Prepaid Items

lnventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption which are valued at cost on a

first-in, first-out basis. Prepaid expenses reflect payments to vendors that benefit future reporting
periods. Inventory and Prepaid items are repofted on the consumption basis. Once consumed,
inventories and prepaid items are charged as expenditures.

Prepaid expenses are similarly reported in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Prepaid items are reflected as non-spendable fund balance in the governmental fund balance
sheet, because these assets do not constitute available spendable resources even though they are
components of current assets.

C) Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization

LifePath's property, plant, equipment and vehicles with useful lives of more than one year are
recorded at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Donated assets are stated at acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that
would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly market
transaction at the acquisition date, or the amount at which a liability could be liquidated with the
counterparty on the acquisition date. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the asset value or materially extend the useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and
applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting
gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years. for depreciable assets are as follows:

Asset Type

l.

Years

l5-40
3-5

4
5-12



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(k) Long-TermLiabilities

ln the government-*'ide financial statements, and proprietary fund statements. outstanding long-
term liabilities, if any, are repofted as liabilities. The governmental fund financial statements
recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of the current period.
lssuance costs are repoded as expenditures.

0) Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Deferred inflows ofresources represent the acquisition of resources that apply to a ftture period
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred
outflows of resources represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time.

(m) Leave Policies

l,ifePath employees eam paid time off (PTO) as work is performed for LifePath. Progressive
accrual of PTO is based on the number of years an individual is employed by Lif'ePath.
Employees can accumulate PTO up to a maximum of 3 I days or 248 hours. Employees carryover
unused PTO hours to the next fiscal year. Unused PTO hours are vested and paid to employees
upon termination of employment at the current salary if the employee meets the following
criteria: the employee must have a minimum of 5 years of full time employment with LifePath;
must not be on probation; and must not be terminated from their position. If this criteria is met
the employee will be paid up to 40 hours unused PTO for every 5 years of full time employment
at a maximum of 160 hours. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 16, "Accounting for Compensated Absences", LifePath accrues its liability for such
accunrulated unpaid benefits. LifePath records its liability for compensated absences as an
expense and liability in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the
governmental lund statements, compensated absences are reported as an expenditure and liability
when the payments are due to be paid out of current resources.

(n) Net Position/Fund Balances

LifePath implemented GASB Statement 54 standards for the classification of fund balances in
the governmental funds. The fund balances ofgovernmental funds are dellned as follows:

Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form,
such as inventory, prepaid items, or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Reslricled - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints that are

extemally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(n) Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action
of the Board of Trustees of LifePath. The Board of Trustees is the highest level ofdecision
making authority for LifePath. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only
throu.eh a formal resolution olthe Board of Trustees.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but
are intended to be used for specific purposes that have been established by the Board ofTrustees.
At year-end, the Board has assigned fund balance for the purpose ofconstructing a new facility.

Unassignecl - all other spendable amounts in the General Fund

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is LifePath's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. For expenditures offund
balance with altemative choices, committed funds are considered to have been spent first. then
assigned. and then unassigned funds.

LifePath is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability; tofts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; doctors' malpractice; and
natural disasters. During fiscal year 2022, LifePath was covered by insurance fbr these various
risks at a cost it considered to be economically iustifiable.

LifePath maintains workers compensation, general and auto liability, directors' and officers'
liability, and property insurance coverage through commercial insurance carriers. There was no
significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year. The amount of settlements has

not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three years. LifePath does not anticipate
any additional assessments for insurance premiums as a result of activities during the year.

(p) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

(q) Tax-Exempt Status

Primary Government:

The Internal Revenue Service has issued a determination letter dated January 15, 2002, stating
that LifePath qualifies as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) ofthe Internal Revenue

Code and, accordingly, is exempt from federal income taxes. This determination lefter further
specifies that LifePath is not considered to be a private foundation as specified by Section
s0e(a)( I ).

(o) Risk Management
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

(q) Tax-Exempt Status (continued)

Component Unit (LifePath Systems Foundation):

The Internal Revenue Service has issued a determination letter dated March 13. 2012, stating
that LifePath systems Foundation qualifies as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and accordingly, is exempt from lederal income taxes. This
determination letter further specifies that LifePath Systems Foundation is a public charity under
Section 170(b)( I )(A)(vi).

(r) Due To/From Other Funds

Generally, outstanding balance between funds reported as "due to/from funds', include
outstanding charges by one f'und to another for services or other miscellaneous
receivables/payables between funds. Activity between funds that is representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are described as "due
tolfrom other funds" (i.e. the cuffent portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from other
funds" (i.e. the non-current poftion of inter-fund loans).

The government-wide statement of net position eliminates receivables and payables between
fun ds.

Interfund balances as ofAugust 31,2022 were as follows:

Interlund

Receivablcs

lntcrfund
Payab lc s

Crencral Fund

Other Govemmental Fund

Intemal Service Fund

$

$

8,260 tj

673"O92

673.092

8,260

Total 681,352 $ 681,352

The amounts between the general fund and the intemal service fund exist primarily due to the
user fees charged by the internal service fund and are not expected to be repaid within one year.

The amounts between the general fund and the other governmental fund exist primarily due to
general operating expenditures and are not expected to be repaid within one year.
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2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS:

Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, LifePath's deposits may
not be retumed or LifePath will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession ofan outside
party. LifePath's policy requires deposits to be lully secured by collateral valued at market or par,
whichever is lower, less the amount ol Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an established record of
fiscal health. Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit offunds. The Board ofTrustees
approves authorized depository institutions based on the recommendations ofLifePath's management.

At August 31,2022, deposits of LifePath were underinsured or under-collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution in the name ofLifePath by $21 l.3l l.

InYestments

Inr€stment Type

Fai r
Value

Weighted
Alerage Days

to Maturitv

Texas Local Cnvemment

Investment Pool (TexPool)

Total [nvestments

$ r5,503,620 AAAm 24

$ 15,503,620

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated credit risk.

(2) TexPool investments are not subject to the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP.

During the year, LifePath invested in Texas Local Government Investment Pool ("TexPool"). TexPool,
a public funds investment pool created by the Treasurer ofthe State ofTexas acting by and through the
'fexas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company, is empowered to invest funds and act as custodian of
investments purchased with local investment funds. Authorized investments of TexPool include
obligations ofthe United States of America or its agencies, direct obligations ofthe State ofTexas or its
agencies, certifi cates of deposit, repurchase agreements.
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LifePath categorizes its fair value measurements of investments within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inpurs
used to measure the fair value ofthe asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets: Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.

At August 31,2022, LifePath held the following investments:

Credit
Rating



CASH, CASH EQUMLENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (continued):

Investment Policies

Credil risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
Generally, LilePath's investing activities are managed under the custody ofthe Chief Financial Officer.
lnvesting is performed in accordance with investment policies adopted by the Board of Trustees in
compliance with state statutes. LifePath's investment policy and state statute generally pelmit LifePath
to invest in certificates ofdeposit, fully collateralized repurchase agreements, public funds investment
pools, obligations ofthe United States ofAmerica or its agencies, direct obligations ofthe State ofTexas
or its agencies. prime domestic bankers acceptances, commercial paper, SEC registered no-load money
market mutual funds, other obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of
Texas or the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, and obligations of states, agencies.
countries, cities and otherpolitical subdivisions having been rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm and having received a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent.
During the year ended August 31, 2022. LifePath did not own any types of securities other than those
pemitted by statute or its investment policy.

Inleresl rate risl< is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate
changes. LifePath's policy requires management to detetmine the appropriate average weighted value
maturity of the portfolio based on anticipated cash flows. Maximum maturities of investments are
limited to five years unless specific authority is granted by the Board.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Receivables due from other governments are for reimbursement of expenditures and fees for services
provided under various programs and grants. All amounts are expected to be collected within the next
year. A summary of LifePath's receivables follows:

Due from other qovernments

HHSC Mental Health Contracts

Medicaid Administrative Claiming
DPP

Collin County

TCOOMMI Programs

Substance Abuse Conkacts

Early Childhood Services Contract

HHSC IDD Contracts

CCBHC
TANF
ICF Homes

Other
Receivables from other governments

Client fees receivable

Medicaid, private insurance, private patient fees

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable, net

s 985,949

l, 138,309

1 58,904

460,231

25,642

164,5 59

r,268,686

76,037

278,082

316,8s9

I 18,503

65,702

$ 5,057.463

t,418,149

451,696)
967,053

39
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4. CAPITALASSETS:

The following table provides a summary ofchanges in capital assets:

September I,

2021 Additions Retirements Transfers

Awust i l.
2022

G ore r n m e n td I ac I ir i t ie s :

No n d e p re c ia b le a sse ts :

Land

Construction in progress

Total nondepreciable assets

Depre c iab le/a n o izab le a ssets

Buildings and improvements

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Vehicles

fught of u-s€ - Buildings*

T otal depreciable/amortizable assets

Acc m u ld ted deprec ia tto fi ia m ort taalio n

Less accumulated depreciation

I-ess acclunulated amortizat ion*

$ 1,412,454

30,800

$ 5 $

(t0.80 0)

$ 1,412,454

t,443,254 13.223 (30.800) I ,425.671

20.520.949

25.926

4.951,194

1.079,832

287.t99

t2.537

66.995

30,7 42

81,265

1.441.450

(570,6t8)

(20,646)

20,499,824

92,921

1,4t 7,298

t.140-45 t

1,728,649

(64,,162) 30,800

26,871.100 1,632,989

(8,4s9,302) (r_r47,450)

(s16,s67)

( 655.746) 30.800 27.879.143

642.100 ( 8.9 6,1,6 5 2 )

(5 16,567)

Total depreciation/amorlizalron (8.459.302) (1,661,017) 642.100 (9.481,219)

C,ross amount ol leased assets atDve $ 1,728-649: less acclunulated amorlizalion $516,567; ncl book value $ 1,212,082

*Beginnmg balances and current year activit! reflected in accordance with adoption ofGASB 87

Depreciation and amortization was charged to functions as follows

DepreciationAmortization TotalGolernmental Activities ;

lntellectual and Deve lopnrental Dis abilities programs

Behavioral Health programs

Early Childhood Intervention program

Administration

Total deprec iation and anrortization e&ense

s 73,846 $

456,878

73,210

543,516

1,572 $

,Rq lqt
'76.216

r49,384

75,418

'746,273

l1.9,46

692,900

$ I.147.450 $ 5r6,567 S 1,664.017

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt:

Direct borrowing: On March 30, 2018, LifePath secured a Revenue Anticipation Note, Series 2018 with
JPMorgan Chase Bank to finance construction improvements and renovations to a building owned by
LifePath. The principal amount of the note was $1,500,000. The note calls tbr monthly payments of
principaI and interest in the total amount of $20,575 until maturity on April 1,2025. The interest rate is
4.10%. The note is secured by a lien on and pledge ofall legally available revenues, deposit accounts,
and funds of LifePath.
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5. LONG-TERMLIABILITIES(continucd):

The Center has entered into lease agreements for real estate with total combined monthly payments

ranging from $55.737 to $ I ,248 per month over the next three fiscal years, with an estimated incremental
borrowing rale of 4.0't/o. Terms of existing agreements expire on various dates over the next three flscal
years.

Following is a summary ofchanges in long-term liabilities for the year ended August 31.2022:

Balance

Beginn ing of
Year A dditions Retirernents

Balance

&d of
Year

Due Within
One Year

Goternmenta I qcl ivities
Direct Borroving:
Note payable, Series 2018

trase Obligations - Buildings *

Chher:

Compensated absences

Total l-ong-term obligations

82t,488

28'.1;7@

217,267

42434
S S S

| ..1-,1 I .45 0

s 604,221

1,304,813

238.602

226.145

589.630

S

256.795 2,825,931 2,844,124 238.602

*Beginning balances and current yearactivity reflected in accordance with adoption ofGASB 87

Interest expense recorded in governmental activities was $69,999. No interest has been capitalized in

the financial statements.

Future debt service requirements for the note payable and lease obligations are as follows:

Direct Borrorling

Year Ending

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Principal

Total

Required

$ 1,365,99 $ 4,267,38t $ 3,,18s,737 $ 2t4.1,636 $ 1,0s4,577

Interes t

s S815,975

7 44.305

348.'751

6t.479

10.469

1.O24

871.454

774,771

352,778

$ 1,909,034 $ 95,972 S 2,005,006

6. RETIREMENT PLAN:

LifePath maintains a 401(a) defined contribution pre-tax retirement plan for the benefit of eligible
employees and their beneficiaries. The name of the plan is the LifePath Systems Retirement PIan.

LifePath contributes to the plan 5o/o of each covered employee's compensated each year. These

contributions are used to purchase mutual funds and/or annuity contracts on behalf of eligible LiltPath
employees. Eligible employ'ees are full-time employees of LifePath u'ho have completed 6 months of
service and are over the age of I 8 years. Forfeitures remain in the plan to pay expenses and reduce future

employer contributions to the plan.
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6 RETIREMENT PLAN (continued):

Employees vest in LifePath's contributions to the plan on their behalfover a five year period as follows:

Vestins Schedule
Percentage

25%
50%
75%

100%

The required contribution by LifePath for the year was $917,337 and the actual LifePath contribution
was $917,337, none of which was funded by employee forfeitures ofnon-vested amounts. The year-end
contribution of $45,732 was due to the plan on August 3 I .

7. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS:

LilbPath offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "Plan") consistent with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457(a). Vesting in the Plan is immediate with plan assets held in trust untilthe employee
terminates employment, retires, or experiences an unforeseeable emergency. Employees may contribute
voluntarily to the Plan in amounts not to exceed limits established by the Internal Revenue Service.
Employee contributions were $41 I ,72 I .

LifePath offers its employees a deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan") consistent with Intemal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). Vesting in the Plan is immediate with plan assets held in trust until the
employee terminates employment, retires, or experiences an untbreseeable emergency. Employees may
contribute voluntarily to the PIan in amounts not to exceed limits established by the Intemal Revenue
Service. Employee contributions were $88,459.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

During the year ended August 3 I , 2022. the Center has been impacted by the effects of the world-wide
coronavirus pandemic. The Center continues to closely monitor its operations, liquidity, and capital
resources and is actively working to minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented
situation. As ofthe date of issuance ofthese financial statements, the full impact to the Center's financial
position is not known.

LifePath is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course ofbusiness. lt is management's belief
that any liability resulting from such litigation would not be material in relation to LifePath's financial
position.

Years of Service
2

3

4
5

1-l

LifePath has participated in a number of State and Federal grant programs. These programs are subject
to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives and regulatory authorities. The
purpose ofthe audits is to ensure compliance with conditions relating to the granting offunds and other
reimbursement regulations. Management believes that any liability for reimbursement arising as the
result of these audits is not believed to be material to the financial position of LifePath.



9. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE:

LifePath receives a substantial portion of its revenues in the form of annual performance contracts with
the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) for services relating to intellectual and
developmental disabilities. mental health services and early childhood intervention services. LifePath is
econom ically' dependent on the continuation ofthese contracts. At August 31. 2022. these contracts have
been conlinued through August 31,2023.

IO. PHARMACYPROGRAMS:

LifePath parlicipates in a patient pharmacy assistance program (PAP) in order to decrease medication
costs incurred by LifePath and its consumers. Under this program. LilePath receives pharmaceuticals at
no charge on behalf of consumers and dispenses these items to consumers in accordance with service
provider instructions. This program does not meet the criteria established by generally' accepted
accounting principles for recording in the financial statements, however, the cost savings achieved by
these programs are significant to l-ifePath Center management estimates the va]ue of pharmacy items
distributed under this program was $5,214,6 I I for the year.

Effective September l. 2021 . the Center adopted the provisions ofCovernmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this statement is to improve the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This statement requires the recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities that were
previously classified as operating leases. It established a single model for lease accounting based on the
fundamental principle that leases represent a financing ofthe right to use an underlying asset. Under this
statement. a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset and a
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistency of information about a governments' leasing activities. The adoption of
CASB 87 did not require any restatement ofopening equity for the Center.

12. MEDICAID COST REPORT RECONCILIATION - DPP PROGRAM

ln FY 2022. Community Centers statewide began participation in a Medicaid I I l5 waiver program
identified as the Direct Payment Program (DPP). As a part ofthe DPP program, Centers file a cost repo(
based on the cost ofthe program and the services provided. The Center's cost report will be considered
as a part ofa statewide reconciliation process for the cost ofDPP services. The cost report reconciliation
will result in a settlement of an amount due to the Center or an amount due back to the program. The
results ofthe final reconciliation will not be known for several months after the report date. Due to the
uncertainty associated with this amount, no provision has been made in the financial statements for any
settlement.
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Budgeted Amounts
o nal Final Actual

Variance
rvith Final

Budget
Positive

(Negative)

LOCAL REVENUES AND EARNED SOURCES:

City and County funds

Patient fees, net

Medicaid and Medicare

TitIC XIX . HCS

Title XIX - TxHLW
TitIC XIX - ICF/IDD
I I l5 waiver

Other revenues

Total local revenues and earned sources

STATE PROGRAM REVENUES:

General revenue

Mental Health First Aid
Early Childhood lntervention - state portion

Subslance Abuse programs - stale ponion

TCOOMMI
Mental Heahh Grant for Justice-lnvolved lndividuals

Texas Rehabilitation Commission

Total state program revenues

FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES:

Mental Health Block Crant

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families

Social Services Block Grant

Early Childhood Intervention

Substance Use Disorders

Money Follows the Person

System ofCare
Coordinated Specialty Care

SAMHSA - CCBHC Grant

Medicaid Administrative Claiming
Total federal program reverrues

Intcrest income

1.1,3s2,811 1,1,812,569 20,5,12,263 5,709,69.1

$ 2,931,664

I ,263,t93
'7,292,150

1,491,l4l
388,172

s28,122

3.500

824,627

$ 2,908.331

1,683,600

5,',l61,719

t,343,875

357,930

627,017

7,039,846

816,945

(23,333 )
420,407

(1,527 ,431)-
(147.266)

(30,242)

98,895

6.926,346
(7,682)

S

17,t35.994

t24,050

2,162,304

3 t6,491
Ir6.246
5 t2,928
442,830

17,135,994

t24,050

2,162.304

316,491

|6,246
5 t2,927

442,830

16,702,762

35.000

2,162.304

3 t6.491

104,848

570.199

39s,77 3

(433,612)

(89.0s0)

(r 1,398)
<'1 111

(47,0s71

20,8t0,843 20,810,8{2 20,286,977 (s23,86s)

1.605,631

867,554

131,058

2,961,7 44

2,423,086

24,938

40,000

270,000

1,818,016

1,265,61',7

2,490,'.l t6
867,5 54

l3 1,058

2,961.714

2,123,086

68,5 80

40.000

270.000

4,334,683

I,235,617

2.382,777

1,401,297

l3 1.058

2,97',|,3s6

2,099,173
os r{7
57 6q5

'r\7 ) t1

3,135,6 t3
1,305,590

(107,939)

533,743

15.6 t2
(323,913 )

26,6',77

l'1.69s
(12,783)

( 1, r99,070)

69,973

I I,{07,647 I.t,823,038 r3,8{3,0.t1 (980,00s)

180 180 61.029 63,849

$ 46,571,51r $ 50,466,629 s 5.1,7.t6,302 S ,1,269,67JTOTAL REvENTIES

,15

Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Ceneral Fund

For the Year Ending August 31, 2022

$ 2,467,186

1,263,193
'7.292,150

1,491,l4l
388, t72
s28,122

I 13,500

809,371



Collin Count!' IUental Health I\lental Retardation Center
DBA Lifepath Systems

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Ceneral Fund
For the Year Ending August 31, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Or nal I.inxI Actual

Variance
rvith Final

Budget
Positive

(Negative)

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries

Employee benefits
Contracted services

l-egal and professional services

Building and equipment rents

Maintenance

Insurance

Vehicle fuel and maintenance

Utilities and telephone

County suppo( program

Quality assurance lees

Consumer related costs

Staff travel and training
[Jser fees

Other costs

Total current

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Nonl]

Total other financing sourc.s (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other firrancing (uses)

F'und balance - End of Year

.l(,.329..183 50,2 t 8,053 4,1,886,625

$ 26.514.344

6,554,556

8.517,619

85.000

17'1.143

t.090.4 t5
2t'1.676

88.276

650.824

70.000

22.000
162,087

181.289

1.026.009

666.245

$ 28,045.910

7,068,609

8.984.498

85.000
721.211

1.283.887

267.t t 4

93.276

736.889

120.304

22.000
808.176

230.51l
1.133.581

617.O87

$ 24,661.443

5,945.3r4
8,743.829

59.925

55.880

1.182.795

247.614
102.493

709,344
'79,527

30.569

992.250
354.631

1.334,648

386.363

$ 3,384,467

1,123,295

240.669

25.015

665.331

101.092

19.500
(9,217)
)? sas

40.77'7

(8,56e)
(184,074)
/l24.120\
(201.067)

230;724

sJ3r,428

556.657 55lt.707 558.707

2t7 -269

29.628
\217.269)

l0.tl039.768 t9.768
,16,92s,908 50,816,528 15,133,522 5,683,006

(3s.r,397) (Jr9,899) 9,602,780 9,952,619

(35i1,397)

4l,082,576

(3{9,899)

41,082,576

9,602,780

41,082,576

9,952.679

$ .10,728,179 S 32,677 $ 50,685,356 S 9,952,619

l6

Capital outlay
[)ebt scrr ice:

Principal
lntcrcst

Total expenditures

Fund balance - Beginning of Year



SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

(UNAUDITED)
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COLLIN COTINT\' }IENTAL HEALTH NIENTAL RETARDATION CENTER
DBA I,II I]PA'I'H SYS'I'IMS

SCHEDT]LE OT,' I \DIRIJC'I COSTS
YEAR ENDED AUGT]ST 3I, 2022

(UNAUDI',TED)

'Ihe first presentation (bclow) is in accordance with DADS methodology and TIIIISC 21st revision ofthe Guidelines
for -{nnual Financisl rnd Compliancc Audits of Community MHMR Centers (including Authority Administratior
in Indircct Costs):

Non- Total
Total Allowsblc Adjusted lndirect
Costs Costs Dcprcciation Costs Costs

Direct

Personnel

Fringe benefits

Capitaloutlay
Depreciation

Building and vehicle use l'ees

Other operating expense

Debt service expenditures

24.661.44t $ $ 24,661.443

5.9,t5,3 t4
$ :l 2,369.992 S

5 t 5.942

l.l5l.:150 r. t5 t.450 81.269

691.6 t7

13,617.879

2t1.269
t 3.617.879

8.714

506.900

29.628

(691.617)

(208,555)

$ _______1i.1_i-jj22 :r _______12!!..lf2l $ ___].llt$0 $ ,1s.i 8,1 800 $ 3.50i 731 $

Indirect
Cosls

Direct
(losts

24.661-443 $

5,945.314

41.879.069

lndirect Costs

Dircct Costs

Indirect Costs

Direct Costs

$ 3,505,731

$ 41.879.069

8.310hIndirect Cost Rate

'l'hc second prescntttion (below) is in accordance with DARS - ECI methodology (excluding Authority
Administration from Indir€ct Costs):

Non- 'fotal

Totrl Allowable Adjusted
Costs Costs Deprcciation Costs

Personnel

Fringe benefits

Capitaloutlay
Depreciation

Building and vehicle use fees

Other operating expense

Debt servicc expenditures

Total Expenditures

$ $ $

1.151,450 1,151,450

24,661.443 $

5,945.31,1

2,369.992 $

513.942

22.29t,15 t

691.617

t3.617.879

(69].,611)

(208,555)

t 3,6 t ?.879

8.7t4
506.900

29.628

13. 0.979
(20,9r1)

83,269 t.068,t8t

$_______129!Jf2I $___LE14!_$__i:J!1J.Q!_ $___?!qlJ.lr $___L!.!l2J!2-

$ 3.505.731

$ 41.879.069

8.310

$

217 269

'15 Ili 522

lndirecl Cosl Rate

49

Total Expenditures

22.29 t,451

t,068,rs;

13,110,979

(20,914)



COLLIN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL RETARDATION CENTER

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF LEASES IN EFFECT

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I. 2022
(UNAUDITED)

Lessor Property l"ocation Period of l-ease Monthly Rental

Benbrook Ridge Partners

c/o Premium Property Man

115 w. 7th. St. Ste. 1303

Fort Worth, TX 76102

ECI Rockwall

1149 Ridge Road

Rockwall, TX 75087

5/U2O2O thtu 4/10/2023 52,e42

De Nada Plano Group, LLC

%Henry S Miller Realty Mgmt

5151 Beltline Rd ste 900

Dallas, TX 75254

ECI Plano

5509 Pleasant Valley Ste.40
Plano, TX 75023

03/Or/2O2Othtu

04/30/202f s3,413

Aberfeldy Properties, lnc. c/o
Younger Partners

14643 Dallas Pkwy, Suite 950

ECI Sherman

2001 Loy Lake Rd, Ste N

Sherman, TX 75090

09lOr/2Ol8rh,ru
09/30/2024

5t,248

R&W SPE, LLC

P.O. Box 3186

IMidland, TX 79702

ECI Frisco

8200 Stonebrook Ste. 208

Frisco TX 75034

04/OU2O2Othtu
03/37/2023

s2,s00

1st Life Planning Parents &

Partners

2848 Woodway Drive

Flower Mound, TX 75028

HCs - Group Home

1717 Spanish Trail

Plano, TX 75023

1 / 7/2or9 thtu 6/30/ 2023 s1,s60

1st Life Planning Parents &
Pa rtners

2848 Woodway Drive

Flower Mound, Tx 75028

HCS - Group Home

3508 Piedmont Drive

Plano TX 75075

9/1/18 tht:u 8/3r/2023 s1,860

Redbud Offices LLC

2012 W. University Dr

McKinney, TX 75071

1450 Redbud Dr

McKinney, TX 75069
r/ | / 2022 thr e 12 / 3r / 2024 S2s,ooo

JPJM Lavon LP

4001Quail Ridge Dr

McKinney, TX 75072

1575 Heritage suite 100/101 t2 / 1 / 2o2r th t u 3 I 31 / 2o2s ili,2t5
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( OLLL\- COt \TY
}IENTAL HE,\I,I'II ITIE\TAL RETARDA'I-Io\ CENTER

DBA 1,I FEPATH SYSTE]\IS

SCTIEDI.]I,E OF INSTJRANCE IN F'ORCE

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I,2022
(UNATIDITED)

lnsurcr Policv Period Coverage

Limits or
Amounts

Texas Council Risk Management Fund 9lll2l to9ll/22 Comnrercial Package:

Blanket Building, BPP. PPO

General Liability:
General Aggregate limit
Products completed operations limit
Deductible $1,000

Commercial Crime
Employee Theft:
False Pretenses

Professional Liability:
Aggregate limit
Each professional incident

Employee Benefits Coverage:

Aggregate Iimit
Each coverage incident

Sexual Misconduct
Each coverage incident

Comnrercial Auto Coverage:

Liability Single Limit

$22.094.847

r,000.000
1,000,000

500,000
50,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

t,000,000
1.000,000

r 00.000

t.000.000

5l



COLLIN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL RETARDATION CENTER

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I, 2022
(UNAUDITED)

lnsurer Policy Period Coverage

Limits or
Amounts

Texas Council Risk Management Fund 911l2l to 9ll/22

911l2l to 9ll122

9l1l2l to 9/l /22

-fexas 
Mutual Insurance 9ltl21 to 9ll/22

American Bankers Insurance Company lll4l2l to ll14/22

Travelers '1122121 to 7 /22/22

Comprehensive Coverage:

Lessor of ACV or cost of repair

$ 1.000 deductible

Collision Coverage:

Lessor of ACV or cost of repair
$ 1.000 deductible

Commercial Umbrella Liability
General Aggregate Limit
Each occurrence limit

Directors and Officers Liability
Ag$egate limit of liabili$
Employment Practices Limit

Workers Compensation and

Employers' Liability:
Bodily injury by accident/

each accident

Bodily injury by disease/

each employee

Policy limit

Flood Insurance (Alrna Dr.)
Building Coverage

$5.000 deductible
Contents coverage

$5,000 deductible

CyberRisk:
Network & Information

Each occurrence limit
Communications & Media

Each occurrence limit
Regulatory Defense

Each occurrence limit

$ 1,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

500,000

70.400

1,000,000

1.000.000
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COLLIN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL RE,TARDATION CENTER

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF BOND COVERAGE

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2022
(UNAUDITED)

Name Title Surety Company

Bond

Amount

Philadelphia Insurance Companies N/A Commercial Crime
Employee Dishonesty:

$5.000 deductible $ s00,000
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COLLIN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL RETARDATION CENTER

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF SPACE OCCUPIED IN A STATE.OWNED FACILITY

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2022
(UNAUDITED)

NONE
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COLLIN COTINTY
MENTAL HEAI,TH MENTAL RETARDATION CENTf,R

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTE]!IS

Name

S('IIEDL LE o} PROFESSIO\,\1, .\\ D CO\St'I,'I'I\G FEES

YEAR ENDED AT]CT]ST 3I,2022
(UNAIIDITED)

Cit) Type of Service Anrount

BBG Inc
BlackBaud
Cobblestone

CPM Construction
David Berk
Jaimie Anderson-Ho),t
Mystrength (Livongo Health)
Rawls Carver
Relias

Scott, Singleton, Fincher & Company, PC

Dallas- TX
Plano. TX
Lindenwold. Nl
Farmersville. TX
McKinney, TX
Gretna. NE
Denver, CO
McKinney, TX
Chicago, IL
Creenville. TX

Building Appraiser
Software
Software
Building Contractor
IT Consulting
Orant Specialist
MH Software App
Architectural Services

Software
CPA, Accounting/Auditing Services

$ 10,500

22,7 44

46,460
134,67I

638

2,655
20,90'1

2,485
62,278
39,000
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Narne

COLLIN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL Rf,TARDATION CENTER

DBA LIFEPATH SYSTf,MS

SCHEDULE OF LEGAL SERVICES

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I,2022
(UNAUDITED)

City Type of Service ArIOunt

Taylor, Olson. Adkins, Sralla & Elam LLP Fort Worth, Texas Legal Services

Lewis Brisbois Biggaard & Smith, LLP Dallas. Texas Legal Services

s 19,741.48

s 1,183.78
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SCOTT, SINGLETON, FINCHER AND COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIFID PUBI- lC ACCO[ LT-TANTS

48I5-A KINC STREET
TELEPHONE 903-455-4765

FAX 903-455-53 t2
GREENVILLE. TEXAS 7540 1

Membcr oll
Govcrnmental Audit Qualitl Center

Mcmbers of:
Amcrican lnstitute of

Certitlcd Public Accountants

l e\as Societ) of
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Indenendent Au ditor's Report

Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Gover n me nt A utl it ing S tu rulords

To the Board of Trustees
Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems

We have audited- in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governntent Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems (LifePath), as of and
for the year ended August 3l, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LifePath's
basic financiaf statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 26,2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and perfomring our audil ofthe financial statenrents, we considered LifePath's intemal control over financial
reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstar)ces for the purpose
ofexpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of LifePath's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LifePath's internal control.

A deficiency in internol conlrol exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allorv management or employees.
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, lo prevent. or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A materiul leakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control. such that there is a

reasonable possibilirr" that a material nrisstatemenl ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significanl daficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph ofthis section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material rveaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these Iimitations. during our audit we did not identiry any deficiencies in internal control that rve consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Complianc€ and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LifePath's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results ofour tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Audiling Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of intemal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofLifePath's intemal control or on compliance. This report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goyernment Auditing Standards in considering LifePath's
intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

SaA, Srr4rlzfar4, Trrit/4t/t dr,rd Qarafar4q, ?0
Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, PC
Certified Public Accountants
Greenville, Texas
lantuzry 26,2023
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SCOTT, SINGLETON, FINCHER AND COMPANY, P.C.
(.I]I{TIFIEI) PI ]BI,I(' ACCOLNTAN-I S

48 I5.A KING STREET
TELEPHONE 90345 5.4765

FAX 903-455-5312
GREENVILLE. TEXAS 7540 I

Member o1.-

Govemmental Audit Qualit) Cent.r
Mcmbers ol:

Amcrican lnstitutc ol'
Ccnilled Public Accounlants

'le\as Sociel) of
Ccrlilled Public Accountanls

Re port on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance and Texas Grant Management Standards

The Board of Trustees
Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems

Opinion on Each Major Federol and Slale Program

We have audited Collin Countl'Mental Health Mental Retardation Centerdba LifePath Systems' (LifePath) compliance
rvith the types of compliance requirements described in tlrc OMB Contplianc'e Supplentent, Texas Grant Management
Standards (TxGMS), and the Guidelines for Annual Financiul und Complimtce Audits of (\ntnunity Mentul Health
and Menlal Retardotion Cenlers that could have a direct and material effect on each of LifePath's major federal and
state programs for the year ended August 31,2022. LifePath's major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary ofauditor's results section ofthe accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systenrs complied. in all rnaterial
respects, witll the types of compliance requirenrents referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal and state programs fbr the year ended August 3 l, 2022.

Basisfor Opinion on Eoch Mojot Federal Program

We conducted our audit ofcompliance in accordance rvith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Americal tlre standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Fcdcrul Regulalion.\ Pa11200.
Uniform Adntinistrative Requirements, Cosl Principles, und Atdit Requirements .for Federal Awurcl.s (Unifbrm
Guidance): Texas Grant Management Standards (TxGMS); and the Texas Health and Human Services Commission's
Guidelines lir Annual Finunciul and Contpliunce Audits of Commnnity MHMR Centers. O\r respons ibilities under
those standards. the Uniform Guidance. TxGMS. and the '[exas Health and Human Services Commission's Guidelines

Jbr Annual F'inanciql and Cotrrpliance Audits of Conttrtutrity MHMR Cenlers arc further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section ofour report.

We are required to be independent ofLifePath and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance rvith relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence u,e have obtained is suflicient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of LifePath's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Mantgement for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance ofeffective intemal control over compliance rvith the requiremenls of laws. statutes. regulations. rules,
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to LifePath's federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our ob-jectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance rvith the compliance
requiremerrts referred to above occurred, rvhether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion LifePath's compliance
based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audil conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governmenl Auditing
Standards. the Uniform Guidance, TxGMS, and the Texas Health and Human Services Commission's Guidelines for
Annual Financial and Compliance Audits of Comnunitf MHMR Centers will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, orthe override of intemal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the.judgment made by a reasonable user
of the report on compliance about LifePath's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a

rvhole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance. we:

. Exercise professionalj udgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding LifePath's compliance with the cornpliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as rve considered necessary in the circumstances.

. Obtain an understanding of LifePath's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in orderto design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniforrn Guidance, TxGMS, and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission's Gridelines for Annual Financiul and Compliutce Audils of Community MHMR Cenlers, but not
for the purpose ol expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LifePath's intemal control over compliance.
Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to comnrunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance
that ue identified during the audit.

Report on Intemfll Conlrol Over Compliance

A deficiency in inlemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation ofa control over compliance does
not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct. noncompliance rvith a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material v'eakness in internol conlrol ot er contpliorce is a deficiency, or combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control
over conrpliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirenrent of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and conected, on a timely basis. A significcmt
deficiency in internal conlrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

61



Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit ofCompliance section above and was not designed to identi! all deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal conkol over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identiry any deficiencies in intemal control over

compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above However, material weaknesses or significant

deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over

compliance- Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose ofthis report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, TxGMS,
and the Texas Health and Human Services Commission's Guidelines for Annual Financial and Compliance Audits of
Commtmity MHMRCenters. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Scoa, Srr4rldar4, 7a4/,ro, alld Qarafa4q. ?0
Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, PC

Certifi ed Public Accountants
Greenville, Texas
lansary 26,2023
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type ofauditor's report issued on whether the
financial statements audited were prepared in
accordance with GAAP (unmodified, qualified.
adverse or disclaimer):

Intemal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

Signifi cant deliciency(ies) identifi ed?

Noncompliance material to fi nancial statements
noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

Signifi cant defi ciency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major federal programs (unmodified. qualified,
adverse or disclaimer):

An1' audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance rvith 2 CFR 200.5 l6(a)?

State Awards
Intemal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

Signifi cant defi ciency(ies) identifi ed?

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for
major state programs (unmodified, qualified,
adverse or disclaimer):

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance Texas Grant
Management Standards?

Unnrodilied

_ yes

_ yes
xno

__L none reported

_ yes xno

_ yes

_ yes
no

x none reported

Unmodified

x

_ yes xno

\ no_ yes

_ yes _f_ none reported

Unnrodihed

_ yes
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year Ended August 31,2022

ldentification of major federal programs:

ALN/CFDA Numbe(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

91.5 58

84.1 8 )

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families originating rvith
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and
passed through the Texas Health and Human Services
Cornmission.

Special Education -Grants for Infants and Families originating
with the U.S. Department of Education and passed through
the Texas Health and Human Services Commission.

Special Education -Grants to States originating with the U.S.
Department of Education and passed through the Texas
Health and Human Services Commission.

81.021

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B state programs: $750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ---!- yes 

-noIdentification of major state programs:

Namc of Statc Program or ClusterALN/CFITA Number(s)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B state programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

State Ceneral Revenue Mental Health (Behavioral Health)
Adult Services passed through the Texas Health and Human
Services Commission

Slate General Revenue - Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities Services passed through the Texas Health and
Human Services Commission

State General Revenue - Early Childhood Intervention passed

through the Texas Health and Human Services Commission

State General Revenue - Mental Health Grant Program for
Justice-lnvolved Individuals passed through the Texas Health
and Human Services Commission

$750.000

no

This section shoutd identify the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud. noncompliance with

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for

which Governmenl Attdil ing Stondords requires reportinS.

No iindings were noted
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year Ended August 3l, 2022

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the audit findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200.516(a) (for example, significant
deficiencies, material weaknesses, material instances of noncompliance, including questioned costs. and

material abuse).

No lindings wcre noted.

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the audit findings required to be reported by Texas Crant Management Standards. Part

IV (for example. significant dehciencies, material weaknesses, material instances of noncompliance,
including questioned costs. and material abuse).

No findings n'ere noted
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L IF EPATH

a

The summary schedule of prior audit findings reports the status of all audit findings included in the
prior audit's schedule of findings and questioned costs. The summary schedule also includes audit
findings reported in the prior audit's summary schedule ofprior auditing findings except audit findings
listed as corrected in accordance with 2 CFR 200.51 I (b)(1), or no longer valid or not warranting further
action in accordance with paragraph 2 CFR 200.5 I I (b)(3). The summary schedule also includes audit
findings reported in the prior audit's summary schedule ofprior auditing findings except audit findings
listed as corrected in accordance with Texas Grant Management Standards or are no longer valid or not
warranting further action in accordance with these requirements.

No uncorrected findings from 2020 or 2021
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS



f IDf RAL GR\\IOR-/P.ISS.THROT'CH
CRAi\_TOFJPROGR.lU TlTl-t:

Collin Court Nt.nultft.lth lu.or.l Reterd.rion Center

DB-{ Lif.t,rth Slstds
Schedul€ ofllrpe iturs oflcd.rd.nd Srite A*.rds

For Ihe \'€ar Erditrg August 31.2022

TEDERAL AWARDS

U.S. Dep.rlmet otHerlth rnd H!m8r Servicer:

COVID' 19 - Provid' RelEf Fund ad Amenc.n R.$u PIe ( ARP) Rual Dishbulion

COVIO- 19 - Blct Guc for Comuity Nl.nral Healih Sflic.s (ProFcl Recolery)

Developm. al Disabilirics Prqecls of National Significance

Seciion 221 D€moostralion Prosms to Inprore Comuiry MenhlHealdt Se^ics

TomlDirc.( Aw..ds

9t 198

,t 9t8

9l6ll
9:t 819

t{t.608

1.262191

tt5,2l9

1.718.097

l..l?9,211

P4sedTtuough lhe Tqas Healthand Hman se ies Comission (HHSC)

Cohprchene!e Comunrr) VenL,l HraIh s.^tr.' to'

Childr.n with S4ious Emononal Daturbalc.s (SED)

Temporary AssnBnce fo, N..dy Families

Tempoarr A$ir,nce for Needy ranilics

COVIO- l9 - Tmpo.ary Allisrdce tor Needy Fmilies (TANF PEAf)

S6.ial S.ruices Bl.cl Crafll

M€dicrid AdhinisFative Chimin8 - Medr.lA$utecr Prosru

luedrcard A{tnidsE tive Cla'ming - Medt.l Asistanc€ Prcgre

Habilitalior Coordimtion ' Medical Asishnc. P.ogrm

Opioid Sraic TarSered Response (STR)

Opioid Srflc Targeted Respons. (STR)

Moner Follows dE Ptr$n R.bslscrng Demo$Eatio.

Vone\ Follosi the P{$n R.b.lacins D.mo.sirrtion

Blocl, CE nr. ror ( ommurrb Vmc I H eahh 5e^ ice(

COVID-19 - BlokGdc for comunity MenralHealih S{vic.s (CSC)

BlGl cEnrs tor Cl]mutrrt) VenBl Health Srn re.
BIcL CBnh to' Comunr\ M.nkl Herlrh S.Nice\

COVTD-19'816l( GdK forComwrry Mc.t l Heallt S.ryicls {MH/COV|D}

Blocl OBnts for Pr€vendon md ltamenr ofSrbslance Abuse

Blocli Cranrs for Prevetrlion and Treatnenr oi Subsrace Ablsc

Blelt Canrs for Preveniio. &d Treaft.d ol Subsldce ,{husc

Bl@t Ganrs for Preenrion ed TGatmcnl ofSubstuce Atusc

Block G6n$ for Pro-enrion and TEatmenr ofSubstance Abuse

Totrl PrBed Throlgh UHSC:

9l l0.l

93 558

93 558

9l 558

91.667

93 714

9l ??8

93174

93 788

9l 788

9l ?9t

9l791

9l 958

9l958

91 958

9l 958

9l 958

91 959

9l 959

9l 959

9l 959

51.695

867_5t4

2.t9.61E

,1.74i
ll I,058

t.0.16,069

t58.728

t00,792

65,000

196.011

?4.18!

20,876

1.208.928

28.06?

419.658

88.487

87,1.85,1

62 t,999

112.632

2.t7,335

ll7.60l

488.?9:l

111.612

HH500036010000 I

HHS0010222000 I {
HH5000640200m6

HHS00t 120200041

HH500t022200014

HH5000517900106

HHS00o5l?900106

HHS00099650000 I

HHS000782500009 SA./OSR

HHS00056200000 I sA/oBT

HHS00099650000 I

HHS00lll190000l

HHS00l0l2?00014 (r)

HHS000312E0000t

HHS000I I 2800001

HHS000 I 1t100009

HHS00l t084000t l
H H5000779800011 s.4/TR {,LBH A

HHS000?7980001 2 SA&IAT

HHS000782500009 S.TVOSR

HHS0007798000 I 5 S.{AUT

HI1s0007798000 l.l sA/Rss,cBo
701 S t.261.d25

Ior,l t.s, Dep3rlm.nr oflleahh and tlunBn servic€s

(t) Recei!ed $l.246.06L expcMed $1.208.928

5 t,15t,125

t'.5. Dep.rrnent of Educ!tion:

Pa$edTtrcugh the Texas ll.allhand Humao SerlicesCom8son (HHSC)

Speci.l Education ' Gdrs for lnfatrlsard Fmilies

Spcral Edncation ' GaiK roSr.tes

Spe.ralEdtrcalion - Personncl Deltlopment lo lmp.ove Seniccs and

Resulh for childE. {ith Disabilities

To&l u.s. Deparrmenr of Educrtion

TOTAL IXPENDITIIRES OT FEDERAL A$ARDs

8.t l8l
8.1017

HHS0006.10100006

HHS0006{0100006

2.175.025

ll5.l,U

81115 ti
1.121,1t8

Total,AIN/CfD,\ 9l 558 - SI-650-935

Total.ALN]CFDA 91.778 - $l-105.589

fotal ALN/CFDA 9l 788 - $26t.077

T.ralAl N/CFDA9l791 - $95.2r?

T.tal ALN/CFDA 93 958, $t.902.29t

TolalALN/CFDA 93 959 - S1.8i8.097

s.e accompaying nold ro th. *h.dule ofexpddirres of federal od sule twards
a.d rccoopanying indcpendenl.udilors repon
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Collin Coun',_:U.trtll U."lrh lu€nrrl R.t,rd,tion Cetrr.r
DB]\ Lif€prth Systems

Sch.drle of [rnenditures of fed.ral md 5lat Ai.rds
Fo.lh. \'.!r Edirg lu8usr.ll.2022

sTrl}: (;RANTOR/P,\SS tROtTCH
GRANTOR,/PROGRANI TTI'I,D

'total
Subreci[ienl
f,rpcndilures

STATE A\\ ARDS

Texas llerllh end Humin Services Commission (HHSC)

Ceneral Rcvenue - Mental tlcalth Adult

Crisis Rcdesign Services

Psychiatric Emergenc! Senice Center (PESC)

Supponive Housing

Veterans Programs

Private Psychiatric Beds

Post Discharge Civil Commils Med

Totrl Generrl Revcnue Ilentrl Health Adult

Ceneral Revenue - lntelleclual and Developmenlal Disabilit,es (lDD)

Pcrmancncy Planning

IDD Crisis lntervention Specialists

IDD Crisis Respite Sen'ices

Nursing Iacilit) Specialized Services Form 1048

Totxl Generel Rerenue Intellectual ard Developmental Disrbilities (lDD)

General Revenue - Mental llealth Child

Mental Health First Aid

Mental llealth Grant ProFam for Justice-lnvolved lndividuals (SU 292)

Substance Abuse general revcnue - SAIRA-l-BHA
Substance Abuse gencral revenue - SA/OSR

Substance Abuse general revenue - SA/14A I'

Substarce Abuse gcneral revenue - SA/RSS-CBO

Substancc Abuse general rc!enue - SA/Al]-l'

Total General Revenue Substxnce Abus€

1uts00099650000r

HHS000996500001

HI{S00099650000 I

HHS000996500001

HHS000996500001

I.171,640

t2,365

(3) 203,0rs

220.450

62.970

I,670,4,t0

I fl1s00 r 0212000 I 1

HHS00t0122000 t4

[u ls00 l 022]000 I I
HHS00102220001{

HHS00 r0:22000 t1

lIIIS001022200014

HHS00 t0222000 t4

S$ 7.626,444

2. t 58,461

273. t6t
62.078

64,401

2.750.r48

17,381

12,952,07r

65,85.r

100.000

lt6,{91 t65,85{

19,786,3S6 165,85,1

(l)
(2)

HHS00102220001,1

HHS000114400009

HII5000134400009

2.079.848

15.000

570.199

HH50007798000I3

t{Hs00077980001.1

I 130007798000t1

HHS000781500009

I tS0007798000 I 5

89.079

6t,999

t00.000
'7',766

5'.7.641

Earh Childhood Inten_ cnrron

Early Childhood Intervention Respite

'lirtnl Ilcahh,rnd Hurnnr S(r'\iccs ('omllli\rion (HHS( )

IOI \t t.\P}t\t)tII Rlt\OFSI \Il. \\\ \Rt)S

I () t.\1. ]t\PI_\t)t I I l{l_s ot. IrLI)l]{ \t. .\\t) s I \ I L\\\ ARI)s

1l ) Rccei!cd S99.276. c\pended 56'1..101

(2) Rccei\ed $2.212.506. e\pended $1.750.118

tlr Rurur\ed $216.b07. c\pcrded $20:015

ltHs0006{0t0001r6

l ISU006.10100006

2.t46.7t I

15.593

See accompan)ing nores to lhe s€hedule ofexpeadrlures offederaland state awards
and.ccompanying independenr audrror's repon
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Collin County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center dba LifePath Syste ms
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awrrds

August 31,2022

I. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
and state a$,ard activity of LifePath Systems (*LifePath") under programs of federal and state governments
for tlre year ended August 31,2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance wilh the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, UniJorn Adninistrotive Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirentent for Federal A,'vards (Undorm Guidance) and Texas Grant Management
Standards (TxGMS). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of LifePath, it is
nol intended Io and does not present the financial position. changes in financial position. or cash flows of
L ife Path.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are repofied on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and
TxGMS, wherein cenain types ofexpenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reinrbursement. Therefore,
some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation ofthe
financial statemenls. Expenditures reported for the Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX)
ALN/CFDA 93.778 represent expenditures incurred during the audit period that LifePath anticipates rvill be

reimbursed through invoices subrnitted to the Texas Health and Human Services Commission. Due to the tirning
of the submission of these invoices, actual reimbursements received during the year will differ from these

antounts.

3. INDIRECT COST RATE

LifePath has elected to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance

4. N,lTURE OF /ICTIVITIES

LifePath receives various grants to cover costs of specified programs. Final determination ofeligibility ofcosts
will be made by the grantors. Should any costs be found ineligible, LifePath rvill be responsible for reimbursing
the grantors for these amounts.
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Collin County Mental Health Mcntal Retardation Center dba LifePath Systems
Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal and State Awards

August 31,2022

5. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal and state awards are reported in LifePath's basic financial statements in the General Fund. Trvo state

programs have been excluded from the Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal and State Awards by specific request

of the funding agencies. The state programs excluded fronr the schedule are the Texas Correctional Office on

Offenders with Medical or Mental Impairments (TCOOMMI) program in the amount of $ 104,848 and the Texas
Rehabilitation Conrmission program in the amount of $395,773. These state programs excluded from the

accompanying schedule are not considered financial assistance as defined in Texas Grant Management Standards
(TxGMS).

The federal program included in the schedule relates to Provider Relief Funds received during the audit period.

Per guidance issued by OMB. only Provider Relief Funds received in Periods 2 and 3 (July l, 2020, through

June 30.2021) should be presented on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Auards. Pursuant to this
guidance, Provider Relief Funds received in these Periods were recognized during the prior fiscal year revenue

but are presented on the current year Schedule. These amounts agreed to the Period 2 Report filed by the Center.

Following is a reconciliation ofthe revenues reported in the financial statements to the Schedule of Expenditures

of Federal and State A*ards:

State ependitures per schedule:

TCOOMMI program

Teras Rehabilitation Cornrnission

Slate program revenues per bas ic financial staternents

Federa I expend itures per schedule:

Period 2 Provider ReliefFunds included in SEFA recognized in prior

period in accordance with conpliance supplernent instructions

Federalprogram revenues per basic ftnancial staterpnts

S 19,786,356

104,848

395;773

$ 20.286.977

$ 14.186.641

$ (3.13,608)

$ 13,843,033

6. STATE AWARD GUIDELINES

State awards are subject to HHSC's Guidelines for Annual Financial und Compliunce Audits of Community

MHMR Centers. Such guidelines are consistent with those required under the Single Audit Act of 1996, the

Uniform Guidance, Texas Grant Managenrent Standards (TxGMS) and Governntenl Aucliting Stcuulurds, issued

by the Comptroller General ofthe United States.
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